

Configuration Tool

Personal Email Manager

v7.2

©2006-2009, Websense, Inc. All rights reserved. 10240 Sorrento Valley Rd., San Diego, CA 92121, USA

Published 2009 Printed in the United States of America and Ireland.

This document may not, in whole or in part, be copied, photocopied, reproduced, translated, or reduced to any electronic medium or machine-readable form without prior consent in writing from Websense Inc.

Every effort has been made to ensure the accuracy of this manual. However, Websense Inc., makes no warranties with respect to this documentation and disclaims any implied warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose. Websense Inc. shall not be liable for any error or for incidental or consequential damages in connection with the furnishing, performance, or use of this manual or the examples herein. The information in this documentation is subject to change without notice.

Trademarks

Websense is registered trademarks of Websense, Inc. in the United States and certain international markets. Websense has numerous other unregistered trademarks in the United States and internationally. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners.

Microsoft, Windows 2000, Windows 2003, Windows XP, Internet Explorer, and Active Directory are trademarks or registered trademarks of Microsoft Corporation.

Netscape is a registered trademark of Netscape Communications Corporation in the U.S. and other countries. Netscape Navigator and Netscape Communicator are also trademarks of Netscape Communications Corporation and may be registered outside the U.S.

The following is a registered trademark of Novell, Inc., in the United States and other countries: Novell Directory Services. Adobe, Acrobat, and Acrobat Reader are either registered trademarks or trademarks of Adobe Systems Incorporated in the United States and/or other countries.

Pentium is a registered trademark of Intel Corporation.

Blackberry is a registered trademark of Research In Motion Limited.

This product includes Apache software. Apache is a trademark of The Apache Software Foundation (<u>http://www.apache.org</u>) and is used with permission. Copyright (c) 2000. The Apache Software Foundation. All rights reserved. Other product names mentioned in this manual may be trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective companies and are the sole property of their respective manufacturers.

Contents

Chapter 1	Personal Email Manager Configuration Tool	5
	Starting the Configuration Tool	6
	Controlling the Personal Email Manager service	6
	Stopping and starting the service	7
	Stopping the service	7
	Starting the service	7
	Changing the Windows account associated with the service	8
	Testing the Web user interface	8
	Managing connections to external systems	8
	Database servers	9
	SMTP server	10
	LDAP servers	10
	Creating or editing LDAP server connection details	11
	Importing an LDAP SSL certificate	12
	LDAP navigation settings	13
	Websense Email Security servers	18
	Creating or editing server connection details	19
	Personal Email Manager configuration settings	20
	Managing SSL contificatos	20
	Creating and installing a self signed certificate	20
	Installing a certificate from a Certificate Authority (CA)	22
	Installing additional certificates	24
	Exporting a certificate or private key	25
	Configuring notification email	25
	Configuring notification reply settings	26
	Changing the event logging level	27
	Changing the PEMAdmin password	28
	Configuring Web server ports	28
	Technical Support.	29

Personal Email Manager Configuration Tool

The Personal Email Manager Configuration Tool allows you to change configuration settings, test connectivity, and control the Personal Email Manager service.

Personal Email Manager is initially configured during installation.

Use the Configuration Tool to:

- Stop and start the Personal Email Manager service.
- Specify the Windows user account under which the Personal Email Manager service runs.
- Test the Personal Email Manager Web user interface.
- Manage and monitor connections to the external systems.
 - Personal Email Manager database
 - Websense[®] Email Security database
 - SMTP servers
 - LDAP servers
 - Websense Email Security servers
- Manage Personal Email Manager configuration settings.
 - Certificates
 - Notifications
 - Replies
 - Logging
 - PEMAdmin password
 - Personal Email Manager Web server

In addition, you must use PEMAdmin or another Personal Email Manager administrator account to:

- Set up queues for Personal Email Manager.
- Customize notification email messages.
- Manage end-user accounts.
- Set up and manage administration accounts.

See the Personal Email Manager Administrator's Guide.

Starting the Configuration Tool

To launch the configuration tool from the Start menu select:

Start > Programs (or All Programs) > Personal Email Manager > Configuration Tool

The main screen provides access to all Configuration Tool functions. It also provides a visual report on the state of the system, flagging elements that are working properly with a check mark, and problematic elements with an "X".

Click **Test All** to refresh the status indicators and, if the service is stopped, refresh the blocked message count.

W Personal Email	Manager Configuration	n Tool
Em	ail Security	Personal Email Manager
Personal Email Mana	ager	v2.00.101
	Start From	Log On As
0	User Interface	UI available
External Systems		
0	PEM Database	Connection OK
0	WES Database	Connection OK
٢	SMTP	Connection OK
0	LDAP	Connection OK
٢	WES Servers	Connection OK
Configuration Settin	ngs	
0	Web Certificates	Certificate valid
0	Notifications	Notification URL valid
	Replies	Notification replies are currently disabled
	Logging	PEMAdmin Password PEM Web Server
		Close

Controlling the Personal Email Manager service

On the main screen, in the section labeled Personal Email Manager, you can:

- Stop and start the Personal Email Manager service.
- Change the Windows account associated with the Personal Email Manager service.
- Test the Personal Email Manager Web user interface.

Stopping and starting the service

If you change the configuration and a restart is required, the message **Restart to apply changes** is displayed next to the **Start From** and **Stop** buttons.

A restart is required if you:

- Change the connection definitions of any external service. See *Managing connections to external systems*, page 8
- Change the settings for certificates, notifications, or replies. See *Personal Email Manager configuration settings*, page 20
- Change the port settings for the Personal Email Manager Web server. See Configuring Web server ports, page 28
- Apply hotfixes.

You *do not* need to stop and restart Personal Email Manager if you change only the logging level or the PEMAdmin password.

Stopping the service

Click **Stop** to stop the service.



Whenever the service is stopped, the time and date of the stoppage is displayed under the **Start From** and **Stop** buttons, along with the number of accumulated unprocessed blocked messages. To refresh the number, click **Test All**.

Starting the service

If only the configuration has changed, or there is no concern about the backlog of unprocessed messages:

• Click **Start From**. In the **Start Personal Email Manager** dialog box, click **Start**. The service is started and unprocessed blocked email is processed.

If the service has been stopped for days or weeks, and there is a large backlog of unprocessed blocked messages, you may want to adjust the date and time to limit blocked email processing to a recent period. Unprocessed blocked email that is older than the Start From date is *not processed*.

To adjust the Start From date and time, and start the service:

1. Click **Adjust Start Date**. In the **Adjust Start Date** dialog box, specify the date and time that Personal Email Manager is to start from in the processing of blocked email. Click **OK**.

You are returned to the **Start** dialog box. The **Blocked email** total is updated to reflect the number outstanding from the new **Starting from** date.

If you are *not* satisfied with the adjustment, click **Adjust Start Date** and change the values again.

2. When you are satisfied with the Starting from values, click Start.

When the service is started, backlogged blocked email is processed as follows:

- Individual notification email is sent for each blocked *outbound* email.
- Individual notification email is sent for each blocked *inbound* email in a queue marked for immediate notification.
- At the next scheduled cycle, composite notification email is sent for all remaining blocked inbound email.



The auto-delete text in notification messages may be misleading because backlogged email has "aged" in the queue and may be deleted sooner than indicated.

Changing the Windows account associated with the service

Personal Email Manager runs as a Windows service under a specified Windows account with the privileges of that account. The account must have Administrator privileges.

To change the Windows account, click the **Log On As** button and specify the account name and password.

Testing the Web user interface

To test the Personal Email Manager Web user interface, click the **User Interface** button. The button is unavailable if the Personal Email Manager service is stopped.

Should the test fail, an error description is displayed next to the button. For more information about the error, examine the configuration log file. By default, the log file is located at: /Program Files/Personal Email Manager/Configuration Tools/Logs/ PEMConfigurator.log.

Managing connections to external systems

In the External Systems section you can monitor, configure, and test connections to the

- Personal Email Manager database
- Websense Email Security database
- SMTP server
- LDAP servers
- Websense Email Security servers

Operative connections have a check mark to their left. Non-operative connections have an "X".

Database servers

To change the connection specifications for the Personal Email Manager or Websense Email Security database servers, click the appropriate button and

- 1. Enter the name or IP address of the database server.
- 2. Enter the server's TCP port number.

Default = 1433

- 3. Select the method of authentication.
- 4. If SQL authentication is used, enter the server login details.

Personal Email N	1anager Database 🛛 🕺
Database server	SYDQADELLWORK02
Port:	1433
Ouse Windows	authentication
C Use SQL Serv	er authentication
User name:	
Password;	
	Refresh DB Lists
Config DB:	PEMConfig 🗨
Log DB:	PEMLog
🍣 Test	Connection OK
	Save Cancel

Click the **Refresh DB Lists** button to refresh the lists for the selected server and to inspect the names of the selected and available databases. This is helpful if you have changed the database server, port, or authentication settings, and in the rare event that the Websense Email Security administrator or Personal Email Manager administrator has changed the standard database names. Examine the DB drop-down lists to see all of the databases available on the selected server. Click an entry to select it.

Click Test to validate the settings and test the connection.

Should the test fail, an error description is displayed next to the button. For more information about the error, examine the configuration log file. By default, the log file is located at: /Program Files/Personal Email Manager/Configuration Tools/Logs/ PEMConfigurator.log.

SMTP server

The SMTP server is the email server used by Personal Email Manager to send blocked notification email to users. (It is not the Websense Email Security server.)

To change the connection, click the SMTP button and

- 1. Enter the name or IP address of the SMTP server. This is typically the name of your organization's email server.
- 2. Enter the TCP port number.

Default = 25

To test the connection, click **Test**.

Should the test fail, an error description is displayed next to the button. For more information about the error, examine the configuration log file. By default, the log file is located at: /Program Files/Personal Email Manager/Configuration Tools/Logs/ PEMConfigurator.log.

SMTP Settings	×
The SMTP serv	er sends the PEM notifications.
SMTP server:	10.4.129.132
	Hint: This should be your organization's mail
	server, not your Websense Email Security server.
Port:	25
💛 Test	Connection OK
	Saus Canad
	Cancel

LDAP servers

To manage LDAP connectivity, click the **LDAP** button. The **LDAP Servers** dialog box includes:

- A list of configured servers. If a connection is faulty, an error message is displayed in red text after the server:port information.
- Buttons to create, configure, and test LDAP servers and connections



In the LDAP Servers dialog box:

Click New to add a new LDAP server to Personal Email Manager.

Click **Edit** to change the settings for an existing LDAP server connection.

Select an entry in the list and click **Delete** to delete an LDAP server connection.

LDAP Servers	X
10.4.129.132:389 10.4.129.133:389	
New Edit Delete	
	Save Cancel

Creating or editing LDAP server connection details

The **LDAP Server Properties** dialog box allows you to create or edit the details of an LDAP server connection.

LDAP Server Properti	es	×	
LDAP server:	10.4.129.133		
	Use SSL (Secure Sockets Layer)	LDAP Certificate	
Port:	389		
Server type:	Active Directory	Navigation	
Authentication type:	simple		
Security protocol:	V		
Base DN:	DC=sydqamail03,DC=com	Fetch Bases	
 Log on to the serve 	r		
Domain:	svdoamail030		
User name	administrator		
Password:	****		
2 Test 🖉 Connection OK			
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
	_	OK Cancel	

To create or modify a connection:

1. Enter the name or IP address of the LDAP server.

- 2. To use SSL with the connection, select the Use SSL check box and click LDAP Certificate. See *Importing an LDAP SSL certificate*, page 12, for information about importing a certificate.
- 3. Enter the TCP port number.

Default = 389

- 4. Select the type of LDAP server (e.g., Microsoft Active Directory, Lotus Domino). The type is used to pre-set the LDAP navigation settings. To view and change the default settings, see *LDAP navigation settings*, page 13.
- 5. Select **simple** for authentication type. Although a drop-down box is presented, simple authentication is the only option.

The **Security protocol** field is reserved for future use.

- 6. Select the base domain details. This is one of the directory bases in the LDAP directory trees that is retrieved using the Fetch Bases query to the LDAP server (for example, DC=sydmail, DC=com). The base determines what Personal Email Manager can see in the LDAP directory tree. For more information, see LDAP navigation settings, page 13
- 7. Select the login method to the LDAP server.
 - Anonymous bind Select this if you want to log on without having to supply a user name and password.

Not all LDAP servers support this method. Enabling anonymous bind means that your organization's structure in the LDAP directory (names, email addresses, etc.) does not have any security imposed on it by the LDAP server.

 Log on to the server – Enter the log on details: domain, user name, and password. User name must have Administrator privileges on the LDAP server.

To test the connection, click Test.

Should the test fail, an error description is displayed next to the button. For more information about the error, examine the configuration log file. By default, the log file is located at: /Program Files/Personal Email Manager/Configuration Tools/Logs/ PEMConfigurator.log.

Importing an LDAP SSL certificate

To import an LDAP SSL certificate:

- 1. Log onto the LDAP server and confirm that it uses SSL, or set it up to use SSL. Export its certificate.
- 2. On the Personal Email Manager host, in the **LDAP Server Properties** screen, enable the **Use SSL** check box and click **LDAP Certificates**. The **LDAP SSL Certificate Management** screen is displayed. The screen displays the current certificate, if any, and whether it is valid.
- 3. To import a new certificate click **Import New Certificate**. A **Browse** box is displayed. Navigate to the certificate, select it, and click **OK**. An **Import Certificate** dialog box is displayed.
- 4. Click **Import** to import the certificate and then click **Close**.

LDAP navigation settings



Warning

If Personal Email Manager is configured to use LDAP and the navigation settings are not correct, Personal Email Manager will not work.

You must have expert knowledge of LDAP to configure these settings correctly. This manual does not provide detailed information about LDAP.

Settings can be restored to their defaults by clicking **Restore Defaults**.

To view or change the LDAP navigation settings, in the **LDAP Server Properties** dialog box, click **Navigation** (to the right of the **Server type** field). The **LDAP Navigation** dialog is displayed.

).4.129.133 (Active Dir	ectory) - LDAP Navigation			×
Search Filters (used to q	uery LDAP)			
User Login:				
(&(objectClass=user)(mail=*)(sAMAccountName=*)((cn	=%s)(mail=%s)(sAMAccountName=%s)))	Test
Email:				
(&((&(objectClass=us	;er)(mail=*)(sAMAccountName=*)))(objectClass=group))((mail=%e)(proxy	/Addresses=smtp:%e)))	Test
Partial User/Group/OU	Name:			
ectClass=user)(mail=*)(sAMAccountName=*))(objectCla	ss=group)(objectClass=organizationalU	nit))((cn=%s)(mail=%s)(ou=%	s))) Test
DN (Distinguished Nam	e)			
((&(objectClass=user)(mail=*)(sAMAccountName=*))(o	bjectClass=group)(objectClass=organiz	ationalUnit))	Test
Name attribute: OU attribute: Type attribute: User Typ	cn ou objectClass	User Name attribute: Primary Email attribute: Primary Email format:	sAMAccountName mail %l@%d	
Group I)	pe value: group	Alias cinali attribute:	proxyAddresses	
OU Type Group Member attribut	value: organizationalUnit	Alias Email format:	jsmtp:%l@%d	
Restore Defaults			ОК	Cancel

These settings control the attribute names and values, and search filters used to retrieve information from the LDAP directory. Default settings are entered automatically by Personal Email Manager according to your LDAP server type.

Personal Email Manager needs to both authenticate user login credentials and to search for objects in the LDAP directory tree. These objects can be user, group, or organizational unit (OU) objects.

From this screen, you can perform test queries against an LDAP server to verify the correctness of its configuration for Personal Email Manager. For example, you can verify that the correct base DN value is set for the server. An incorrect base DN value results in LDAP object searches that do not return the expected results.

You need to change these settings *only* if you have a non-standard LDAP directory structure, or if you have an LDAP server that is currently not supported by Personal Email Manager. Therefore, do not change these settings unless you are certain of the changes required. Contact Websense Technical Support for assistance.

LDAP tests for search filters

You can perform test queries, if needed, against the LDAP server to verify the correctness of the LDAP configuration settings. The tests are:

- User login
- ♦ Email
- Partial user/group/OU name
- Distinguished Name (DN).

User Login Test

This search filter is used in the Personal Email Manager login process, which occurs in three steps:

- Authenticate user credentials against the LDAP directory.
- Retrieve the LDAP object for the user from the directory.
- Match the user object primary email address against the Personal Email Manager user accounts.

It is possible for a user to authenticate against the LDAP directory successfully, but not be able to log in to Personal Email Manager because they are not yet a Personal Email Manager user. That is, they have not yet had a blocked message processed by Personal Email Manager and, therefore, a user account has not yet been created. Use this test to verify that Personal Email Manager is retrieving the correct user objects from the directory during login.

User Login - LDAP Filter	Test	×
User Login search filter:		
(&(objectClass=user)(ma	il=*)(sAMAccountName=*)((cn=%s)(mail=%s)(sAMAccountName=%s)))	
User name:	Search Directory	
Email addresses:		
Attributes:		
	Close	

In the **User name** field, enter a login user name, an email address, or an LDAP common name (CN). You can include wildcard characters. For example, you can enter "john*" to find "john.smith".

The search results are the primary and alias email addresses for the first user object found that matches the user name search.

Email Test

Personal Email Manager uses this filter when processing email addresses in email isolated by Websense Email Security to determine if a notification should be sent.

Use this test to verify that the correct LDAP objects are retrieved for a supplied email address.

Email - LDAP Filter Test	t in the second s	×
Email search filter:		
(&((&(objectClass=user	r)(mail=*)(sAMAccountName=*))(objectClass=group))((mail=%e)(proxyAddresses=smtp:%e)))	
Email address:	Search Directory	
Found objects:		
Attributes:		
		Close

In the **Email address** field, enter a valid SMTP email address format. No wildcard characters are allowed.

The search results are either user or group objects that are listed according to their distinguished name (DN). Selecting an individual LDAP object from the result list displays the list of LDAP attribute values returned for that object.

Partial User/Group/OU Name Test

This search filter is used to search for selected users during Personal Email Manager queue configuration. A selected user may be a user, group, or OU in the LDAP directory.

Use this test to verify that the correct LDAP objects are retrieved for a specified partial name.

Partial User/Group/OU	Name - LDAP Filter Test	×
Partial User/Group/OU Na	me search filter:	
(&((&(objectClass=user))(mail=*)(sAMAccountName=*))(objectClass=group)(objectClass=organizationalUnit))((cn=%s)(mail=%s)(ou=%s)))	
Name:	Search Directory	
Found objects:		
Attributes:		
	Close	

In the **Name** field, enter an LDAP object common name (CN), an OU name, or an email address. Wildcard characters are allowed.

The search results are user, group, or OU objects, listed according to their distinguished name (DN). Selecting an individual LDAP object from the result list will display the list of LDAP attribute values returned for that object.

DN (Distinguished Name) Test

This search filter is used to search for selected users from the Personal Email Manager queue configuration, in preparation for processing of messages isolated by Websense Email Security. Personal Email Manager maintains a cache of selected users, which are resolved against the LDAP directory, to maximize email processing performance.

DN (Distinguished Name	2) - LDAP Filter Test
DN (Distinguished Name)	search filter:
((&(objectClass=user)(n	nail=*)(sAMAccountName=*))(objectClass=group)(objectClass=organizationalUnit))
DN:	Search Directory
Found objects:	
Attributes:	
	Close

Use this test to verify that the correct LDAP object is returned for the specified DN.

In the **DN** field, enter the exact DN for the LDAP object. A DN is a unique identifier for an object in an LDAP directory. For example, "CN=John Smith, CN=Users, DC=company, DC=com". No wildcard characters are allowed.

The search result is a single matching user, group, or OU object. It is listed according to the DN. Selecting the LDAP object from the result list displays the list of LDAP attribute values returned for the object.

Websense Email Security servers

To manage Websense Email Security server connectivity, click the **WES Server** button on the main screen.

The **WES Servers** dialog box displays the connection status of each server and allows you to create, configure, and test Websense Email Security servers and connections.

Click New to add a new Websense Email Security server.

Click **Edit** to change the settings of an existing Websense Email Security server connection.

To delete an entry, select an entry in the list and click **Delete**.



Websense Email Security Servers	X
SYDQADELLWORK02:8181	
New Edit Delete	
Save Cancel	

Creating or editing server connection details

The **Websense Email Security Server** properties dialog box allows you to create or edit the details of a connection to a Websense Email Security server administration service.

Websense Er	mail Security Server	×
WES server: Port:	SYDQADELLWORK02 8181	
User name:		
Password:		
	The User name and Password fields are only required if Websense Email Security is on a remote machine.	
🔁 Test	🗌 🤡 Connection OK	
	OK Cancel	

To create or modify an entry:

- Enter the name or IP address of the Websense Email Security server.
- Enter the TCP port number.

Default = 8181

• If the Websense Email Security server is on a remote computer, enter the login details. The user must be a Websense Email Security administrator with full privileges.

To test the connection, click Test.

Should the test fail, an error description is displayed next to the button. For more information about the error, examine the configuration log file. By default, the log file is located at: /Program Files/Personal Email Manager/Configuration Tools/Logs/ PEMConfigurator.log.

Personal Email Manager configuration settings

In the Configuration Settings section of the main screen, you can:

- Manage Secure Sockets Layer (SSL) certificates.
- Configure and test the URL link to Personal Email Manager included in blocked notification email.
- Configure and test the Personal Email Manager notification reply settings.
- Control the event logging level.
- Change the password for the PEMAdmin account.
- Configure the ports used by the Personal Email Manager Web server.

Managing SSL certificates

During Personal Email Manager installation, a self-signed SSL certificate is created for the Personal Email Manager Web interface. This certificate is valid for 90 days and ensures that user passwords, in particular LDAP domain passwords, are sent encrypted during login.

To maintain secure communications after the temporary certificate expires, you must install either a self-signed certificate or a certificate purchased from a Certificate Authority (CA).

To open the SSL Certificate Management dialog box, click Web Certificates.

55L Certificate Management		X
Current SSL certificate:		
Aliasname: pem-ssl Erstellungsdatum: 27.02.2008 Eintragstyp: PrivateKeyEntry Zertifikatskettenlänge: 1 Zertifikatskettenlänge: 1 Zertifikat[1]: Eigner: CN=SYDQADELLWORK02, OU=Personal ST=California, C=US Aussteller: CN=SYDQADELLWORK02, OU=Personal ST=California, C=US Seriennummer: 47c5f98c Gültig von: Wed Feb 27 16:00:12 PST 2008 bis: Digitaler Fingerabdruck des Zertifikats: MD5: 52:C1:99:07:B4:50:53:B1 SHA1: 55:55:1A:D7:76:15:4A:9, Unterschrift-Algorithmusname: 5 Version: 3	l Email Manager, O=Websense, L=San Diego, onal Email Manager, O=Websense, L=San Diego, Tue May 27 17:00:12 PDT 2008 ::B5:02:E4:4B:8F:94:D3:9D A:35:D3:E7:3F:92:A1:86:67:5F:0B:74:60 5HA1withRSA	
Certificate valid Install New Certificate Create your own: New Self-signed Certificateor- Purchase from a Certificate Authority: Generate CSR Import Certificate	Export Export Private Key Export Certificate	
		Close

Personal Email Manager certificates are located in the pemserver.keystore file.

Creating and installing a self-signed certificate

To create and install a new self-signed certificate, click New Self-signed Certificate.

New Self-signed Certifi	cate 🔀
Create and install a new	self-signed certificate.
Server name (or IP):	SYDQADELLWORK02
Organizational unit:	Personal Email Manager
Organization:	Websense
City / Locaility:	San Diego
State / Province:	California
Country code:	US 💌
Key size:	1024 💌 bits
Validity:	90 days
	Install Cancel

Enter:

- The name of the server or its IP address.
- The OU to which the certificate belongs.
- The name of the organization.
- The validity period of the certificate.

Click Install to complete the process.

Installing a certificate from a Certificate Authority (CA)

To use a certificate from a CA, you must first generate a certificate signing request (CSR), and send it to a CA. When the CA certificate is returned, it must be imported into Personal Email Manager.

To begin, click **Generate CSR**. The **Certificate Signing Request** screen displays the contents of the request, and describes the steps in the process.

Certificate Signing Request	×
Steps:	
1. Submit this Certificate Signing Request (CSR) to your Certificate Authority.	
2. They will return the signed certificate.	
3. Use the Import Certificate function to install it.	
Certificate Signing Request:	
EBGIN NEW CERTIFICATE REQUEST MIIBxTCCAS4CAQAwgYQxCzAJBgNVBAYTAIVTNRMwEQYDVQQIEwpDYWxpZm9ybmlhMRIwEAYDVQQH EwITYW4gRG11228xETAPBgNVBAoTCFdIYnNlbnN1MR8wHQYDVQQIEx2QZXJzb25hbCBFbWFpbCBN YW5h22VyMRgwFgYDVQQDEw9TWURQURFTExXTIJLMDIwg28wDQYJKo2IhvcNAQEBBQADgYQAMIGJ AoCBAMML2FhgOwh2j5DxMLvuKVCRyOwSr+eSb44DUbAS+2PWrdbpYzxjXytD2QtgYcSLluhlouc4 DQQyJIsQHzS6sUC6+uEwc5bo+N312BVihLs1GFICHcwLDiQfdBOYJkyjEAm8AzeeneknIWeIVUHc JclLkdD26UmgUIzjfkUOSWYtAgMBAAGgADANBgkqhkiC9w0BAQUFAA0BgQCphJffbOCW3KS002bY hRn6dJ2bKC4TleMaGJxv/He8SogkpHw0U150tCIjTV+jLuefksPkD3NpCU4i/dvsfNuqt29Y+aQv /09XaxLgto4EajfG+W4IEmXuM4HHTex6/DIJmluET9ttWnkkD5Icwmlv4RWiQ6Bk4kzSyd9nz59y BA== END NEW CERTIFICATE REQUEST	
Copy	

When the certificate is returned, read the CA's installation instructions. Some CA certificates require additional root or intermediate certificates. See *Installing additional certificates*, page 24 for more information.

After any intermediate certificates are installed, click **Import Certificate**. A file **Open** dialog box is displayed. Navigate to the location of the certificate and select it. The **Import Trusted Certificate** screen displays the details of the certificate.

Click **Import** to complete the installation.

Imp	port Trusted Certificate	×
Ce	rtificate details:	
Ei S' S' G D	igner: CN=SYDQADELLWORK02, OU=Personal Email Manager, O=Websense, L=San Diego, T=California, C=US ussteller: CN=SYDQADELLWORK02, OU=Personal Email Manager, O=Websense, L=San Diego, T=California, C=US eriennummer: 47C5f98c ültig von: Wed Feb 27 16:00:12 PST 2008 bis: Tue May 27 17:00:12 PDT 2008 igitaler Fingerabdruck des Zertifikats: MD5: 52:C1:99:07:84:50:53:B1:B5:02:E4:4B:8F:94:D3:9D SHA1: 55:SF:1A:D7:76:15:4A:9A:35:D3:E7:3F:92:A1:86:67:5F:0B:74:60 Unterschrift-Algorithmusname: SHA1withRSA Version: 3	
	Import Cancel	

Installing additional certificates

Some CA-issued certificates require additional root or intermediate certificates. These requirements should be stated in the CA's certificate installation instructions. Follow the instructions for Tomcat 5.x to obtain the necessary certificates.

Use the **keytool** application to install the certificates in the Personal Email Manager pemserver.keystore. The **keytool** executable is located in:

<PEM Install Folder>\JRE\bin

The form of the keytool command is:

```
<PEM Install Folder>\JRE\bin\keytool.exe

-import

-alias <alias>

-keystore

<PEM Install Folder>\jboss-4.0.3SP1\server\default\conf\

pemserver.keystore

-trustcacerts

-file <certificate file>
```

Run keytool in a Windows Run or Command Prompt box.

After the additional root and intermediate certificates are installed, return to the **SSL Certificate Management** screen and click **Import Certificate**. A file **Open** dialog box is displayed. Navigate to the location of the certificate and select it. The **Import Trusted Certificate** screen displays the details of the certificate. Click **Import** to complete the installation.

The following example commands install a root and 2 intermediate certificates:

```
<PEM Install Folder>\JRE\bin\keytool.exe
  -import
  -alias root
  -keystore
  <PEM InstallFolder>\jboss-4.0.3SP1\server\default\conf\
      pemserver.keystore
  -trustcacerts
  -file valicert_class2_root.crt.
 <PEM Install Folder>\JRE\bin\keytool.exe
  -import
  -alias cross
   -kevstore
  <PEM Install Folder>\jboss-4.0.3SP1\server\default\conf\
      pemserver.keystore
   -trustcacerts
  -file gd_cross_intermediate.crt
<PEM Install Folder>\JRE\bin\keytool.exe
  -import
   -alias intermed
  -keystore
  <PEM Install Folder>\jboss-4.0.3SP1\server\default\conf\
      pemserver.keystore
```

```
-trustcacerts
-file gd_intermediate.crt
```

Exporting a certificate or private key

Export a certificate or private key when you need to install the same certificate at another location in your network, for example within a firewall or proxy server. Click the appropriate **Export** button and specify or **Browse** to the location.

Configuring notification email

Click the **Notifications** button on the main screen to review, configure, and test the Personal Email Manager notification settings. These settings are stored in the Personal Email Manager configuration database (PEMConfig) and are used for notification and confirmation email messages sent by Personal Email Manager. The **PEM Notification** settings include:

- The email address and Friendly Name of the sender of the notification
- The server settings for the links included in the notification email and the confirmation pop-up message

The Personal Email Manager server must be accessible to end users from a Web browser. You need to:

- Select the protocol: HTTP or HTTPS.
- Enter the name of the Personal Email Manager server. This can be the server, proxy server, or DNS name.
- Enter the port number.

Default = 8282

To test the URL, click Test.

Should the test fail, an error description is displayed next to the button. For more information about the error, examine the configuration log file. By default, the log file is located at: /Program Files/Personal Email Manager/Configuration Tools/Logs/ PEMConfigurator.log.

PEM Notifications
PEM notification sender
Email address, Email Advis@audaamail02.com
Email aduress: [Email_Admin@syddamailo2.com]
Example: Email_Admin@company.com
Friendly name: PEM Administrator
Hint: Omit if address looks trustworthy,
Server for links in PEM notifications
This must be accessible to end users from a web browser.
Protocol: HTTP 💌
PEM server: SYDQADELLWORK02
Server, proxy server, or DNS name
Port: 8282
🚬 😴 Test 💟 💟 Notification URL valid
Save Cancel

Configuring notification reply settings

Click the **Replies** button on the main screen to configure Personal Email Manager notification replies.

If the notification replies function is enabled, an end user can reply to Personal Email Manager notification email to release blocked email. This is necessary to allow users of text-based devices, such as a Blackberry®, to release their blocked email.

To configure Personal Email Manager notification replies:

- Select Enable Notification Replies (via IMAP).
- Enter the name or IP address of the IMAP server. This is usually the name or IP address of the SMTP server.

Important

The use of a valid Personal Email Manager user account as an IMAP account can cause loss of mail. The IMAP account is for Personal Email Manager notification replies only. You should use a dedicated account for this purpose.

• Enter the TCP port number of the server.

Default = 143

• Enter the user name and password of the IMAP mailbox for the Personal Email Manager email account.

To test the settings, click Test.

Should the test fail, an error description is displayed next to the button. For more information about the error, examine the configuration log file. By default the log file is located at: /Program Files/Personal Email Manager/Configuration Tools/Logs/ PEMConfigurator.log.

Connect to IMAP Server Enter the details to connect to your	r IMAP server	Email	Security
IMAP integration enables users to rel	lease emails from text	based mail clients.	
Enable IMAP integration with	Personal Email Manag	er	
Server name:			
Port Number: 14	13		
User name: Ac	dministrator@WORKG	ROUP.com	
(The IMAP account is for PEM no purpose, not a regular PEM user	otification replies only, raccount.)	Use a dedicated ad	count for this
<u>P</u> assword:			
stallShield			
	< <u>B</u> ac	:k <u>N</u> ext >	
Note			
Note If Notificati	on Replies is	disabled no	status icon is

Changing the event logging level

Click the **Logging** button on the main screen to change the logging level and other settings related to the Personal Email Manager log file.

While Personal Email Manager is running, it sends log entries to an XML file named "server.log." The log file can be helpful in diagnosing Personal Email Manager problems.

In the **PEM Logging** dialog box, you can specify the amount of detail recorded. The options are:

- Error Only serious errors are logged.
- Warning (default) Serious errors and minor problems are logged.
- Information All Personal Email Manager operations are logged.
- Debug Extensive information on Personal Email Manager and underlying frameworks is logged.

Warning (default) typically keeps the log file to a manageable size, while providing sufficient information about Personal Email Manager problems. Use this level during normal operation.

When diagnosing a problem, you might want to increase the level to **Information** or **Debug**. Use these levels only while resolving problems, because the amount of output can create very large log files.

Click View to view the log file.

PEM Logging	×
Logging level	
O Error	
Warning	
O Information	
Debug (Use only for issue resolution, as this creates large log files.)	
······································	
Log file: Image: Image: Ima	
	_
Save Cancel	

Changing the PEMAdmin password

To change the PEMAdmin password, click the **PEMAdmin Password** button on the main screen.

PEMAdmin is the predefined administrator account. Use the PEMAdmin account to configure Personal Email Manager through the Personal Email Manager Web interface, including creating all other administrator accounts. The PEMAdmin password is encrypted and stored in the Personal Email Manager configuration database (PEMConfig). It is not recoverable.

Because this account may be the only Personal Email Manager administrator account, and because it is possible that the password could be lost, you can reset this password.

Configuring Web server ports

Click the **PEM Web Server** button on the main screen to set the port numbers for the Personal Email Manager Web server.

Note

This dialog is available only when the Personal Email Manager service is stopped.

Personal Email Manager uses ports for secured (HTTPS) and unsecured (HTTP) connections to the Personal Email Manager Web interface:

 HTTP ports (default = 8282) – Used for unauthenticated requests from notification email. HTTPS ports (default = 8663) – Used in conjunction with SSL encryption for authenticated Personal Email Manager Web interface sessions to prevent end-user passwords, which could be domain passwords, from being compromised.

You can elect to use the standard ports, or specify custom ports.

PEM Web Server Settings	×
 Use standard Web Ports (80, 443) Use custom ports Http: 8282 Https: 8663 	
Save	9

Technical Support

Technical information about Websense products is available online 24 hours a day at:

www.websense.com/support/

- latest release information
- searchable Websense Knowledge Base
- show-me tutorials
- product documents
- ♦ tips
- answers to frequently asked questions
- in-depth technical papers

For additional questions, click the Contact Support tab at the top of the page and fill out the online support form.

If your issue is urgent, please call one of the offices listed below. You will be routed to the first available technician, who will gladly assist you.

Location	Contact information
North America	+1-858-458-2940
France	Contact your Websense Reseller. If you cannot locate your Reseller: +33 (0) 1 5732 3227
Germany	Contact your Websense Reseller. If you cannot locate your Reseller: +49 (0) 69 517 09347

Location	Contact information
UK	Contact your Websense Reseller. If you cannot locate your Reseller: +44 (0) 20 3024 4401
Rest of Europe	Contact your Websense Reseller. If you cannot locate your Reseller: +44 (0) 20 3024 4401
Middle East	Contact your Websense Reseller. If you cannot locate your Reseller: +44 (0) 20 3024 4401
Africa	Contact your Websense Reseller. If you cannot locate your Reseller: +44 (0) 20 3024 4401
Australia/NZ	Contact your Websense Reseller. If you cannot locate your Reseller: +61 (0) 2 9414 0033
Asia	Contact your Websense Reseller. If you cannot locate your Reseller: +86 (10) 5884 4200
Latin America and Caribbean	+1-858-458-2940

For telephone requests, please have ready:

- Websense subscription key
- Access to Websense Email Security and its components
- Familiarity with your network's architecture, or access to a specialist
- Specifications of machines running Websense Email Security and its components

To display the version number of the Personal Email Manager release installed on your system, open the Windows **Add or Remove Programs** application and click on the entry for Personal Email Manager. Click the link for support information.

Index

A

Adjust Start Date, restarting the service, 7

B

blocked message count, refreshing, 6

С

certificates, 20 CA, 22 exporting, 25 installing with keytool, 24 LDAP SSL, 12 managing, 20 root and intermediate, 24 self-signed, 22 stored in pemserver.keystore, 21 configuration settings, overview, 20 Configuration Tool, starting, 6 configuration, overview, 5 configuring notification email, 25 configuring notification replies, 26 connections, overview, 8 customer support, 29

D

database server connections, 9 refresh list, 9 debug logging level, 27

E

error logging level, 27 event logging, 27 exporting a certificate, 25 external connections database servers, 9 LDAP server, 10 overview, 8 SMTP server, 10 Websense Email Security servers, 18

Ι

IMAP, supporting in notification replies, 26 importing an LDAP SSL certificate, 12 information logging level, 27 installing a CA certificate, 22 installing a self-signed certificate, 22 installing root and intermediate certificates, 24

K

keytool, for installing certificates, 24

L

LDAP server connection, 10 creating, 11 editing, 11 navigation settings, 13 SSL certificate, 12 testing search filters, 14 logging level, 27 debug, 27 error, 27 information, 27 warning, 27

N

notification email, configuring, 25 notification replies, configuring, 26

P

PEMAdmin password, 28
pemserver.keystore, 21
Personal Email Manager version number, 30
Personal Email Manager service adjusting the Start From values, 7 processing backlogged messages, 8 starting, 7 stopping, 7 Windows account, 8
processing backlogged messages, 8

R

refreshing the status indicators, 6 restarting the service, required when, 7

S

self-signed certificate, 22 server connections, overview, 8 SMTP server connection, 10 SSL certificates, managing, 20 Start From, restarting the service, 7
starting the Configuration Tool, 6
starting the Personal Email Manager service, 7
processing backlogged messages, 8
status indicators, refreshing, 6
stopping the Personal Email Manager service, 7

Т

technical support, 29 Test All, to refresh status indicators, 6 testing the Web user interface, 8 Tomcat 5.x, 24

V

version number, Personal Email Manager, 30

W

warning logging level, 27 Web interface, testing, 8

Web server port, configuring, 28

Websense Email Security server connections, 18 creating or editing, 19Windows account associated with the service, 8